• 

I. INTRODUCTION & STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This case should have been dismissed on 25 October 2005. Yet it 

lives on despite all legal efforts of this Petitioner/ Appellant to end it. It has 

been appealed twice to Division Three. [# 25303-1-III & #29045-0-III] 

The reasons this has happened are of less importance than correct

ing the injustices done to Petitioner and also to the dignity of the courts. 

The injustice includes severe damage to his reputation, intense emotional 

upheaval, and substantial unlawful transfers of Petitioner's wealth under 

the guise of child support. 1 Sadly, the injustice and damage done to the

II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

#1 The trial court erred when it entered Findings of Fact #1 through #11 

on 30 January 2012. 

#2 The trial court erred when it entered Conclusions of Law # 1 through 

#6 on 30 January 2012. 

#3. The trial court erred when it entered a money judgment of $3740.00 

against Petitioner Dan Barrett, Sr. on 30 January 2012. 

#4 The trial court erred when it entered "Judgment" #1 through #6 on 30 

January 2012.2 

III. ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

First Issue 

Does the Kittitas County superior court have 
authority to exercise jurisdiction over the subject 
matter of this cause (take cognizance) when the 
cause was pending in Pierce County Superior 
Court at the time of filing in Kittitas County and 
Respondents had successfully sought intervenor 
status under the Pierce County cause number? 

Second Issue 

Does a superior court abuse its discretion when it 
imposed a child support obligation solely upon one 
parent when there is no evidence that the other 
parent has had parental rights terminated? . 

Does a superior court have authority to order a 
parent to pay .another party's ostensibly reason
able attorney fees in a third party custody matter 
when there is no evidence that the parent so or
dered has the ability to pay? 

2 These provisions appear to be findings or conclusions that are mislabeled. 
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IV. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The thrust of this review is whether there exists sufficient "wiggle 

room" in the law to permit the "forum shopping" done by Respondent. 

The primary question presented is whether the Kittitas County Su

perior Court could take cognizance of a matter that was already pending in 

Pierce County Superior Court and in which the initiating party had partici

pated. A collateral question is whether estoppel and/or res judicata pre-

eluded trial of allegations of violence which supposedly occurred prior to 

the entry date of the final parenting plan in Pierce County Superior Court. 

A second question is presented with regard to the court ordering 

Petitioner/Appellant to pay the other party's attorney fees without showing 

need and ability to pay. This question will not be reached if the first ques

tion is resolved in favor of Petitioner/ Appellant. 

V. ARGUMENT 

Can a court take jurisdiction from another court? Can jurisdiction be 
exercised in a manner not specified in statute? 

At the very first hearing in Kittitas County Superior Court, Re

spondent's attorney (Richard Cole) recited his version of the prior pro

ceedings of two different courts (Pierce County Superior and Puyallup 

Tribal). [VRP 10/24/05- p3-5]. Cole's recitation was incomplete and 

misleading because he failed to disclose to the court that his client (Re

spondent) had already filed and served a Non-parental Custody Petition in 

the Pierce County Superior Court dissolution case after he had been 

granted intervenor status. [P.C.Sup.Ct. #97-3-02158-7]. 
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At best, this omission misled the court into a venue discussion in 

which Cole made sweeping, unintelligible and incorrect conclusory state

ments about venue, jurisdiction, and in which he conflated RCW 26.09 

with RCW 26.10. [VRP 10/24/05- p3-5].3 

When it was Petitioner/Appellant's turn to address the court, he did 

not get very far before Judge Sparks interrupted him and made a startling 

statement that has gone unnoticed until now: 

THE COURT: ... Jurisdiction is the ability of the 
court to have the authority to hear a case. Venue 
is which actual place is it heard. Because Kittitas 
County Superior Court is exactly the same juris
diction as the Yakima County Superior Court as is 
the same as Pierce Countv, King. We are one big 
court system in Washington. So the difference is 
venue. This is a different venue. We are in Ellens
burg. In Pierce County is in Tacoma. So that's the 
difference. So let's be clear on that. So we have 
jurisdiction here because it's the same court. It's 
just in a different place. Does that make sense? 

[emphasis added] 

VRP 10/25/05 - p6-7 

The use of the word "we" is extremely troubling. It is frankly stun

ning that such an egregious mis-statement of the law could be uttered by a 

judge in open court. Adding to the stunning aspect is that one of the lead 

opinions on the difference between venue, jurisdiction and the authority of 

a court to act is from the same county as this case: 

Under the priority of action rule, the trial court 
that first obtains jurisdiction is the court in which 
this matter will normally proceed. [cite omitted]. 
SSI contends the court that acquires jurisdiction 
is the court in the county in which both filing and 

3 This court should take judicial notice of the docket history of this case. 
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service are first completed. We disagree. The 
applicable court rule and statute are unambigu
ous. Both provide that a civil action is com
menced by filing or bv service of the summons 
and complaint. CR 3; RCW 4.28.020. Once an 
action is commenced, ''the court is deemed to 
have acquired jurisdiction and to have control of 
all subsequent proceedings." RCW 4.28.020. 

"CR 3 clearly and unmistakably provides that an 
action is commenced today by service of a sum
mons or by the filing of a complaint." [cite omit
ted]. RCW 4.28.020 clearly provides that the 
court is deemed to have acquired jurisdiction from 
the time an action is commenced. Therefore, the 
King County court acquired jurisdiction over this 
matter when the County filed its complaint. The 
fact that SSI completed both service and filing 
first does not confer jurisdiction on the Kittitas 
County court. [cite omitted]. [emphasis added] 

Seattle Seahawks v. King County, 128 Wn.2d 
915, 916-917, 913 P.2d 375 (1996) 

Regardless of whether one takes the view that the original petition 

filed for dissolution of marriage or the non-parental custody petition filed 

in Pierce County by Respondent is the determining act, the result is the 

same -- Pierce County Superior Court has long ago acquired exclusive ju

risdiction over the case and the minor children. 

Respondent implicitly acknowledged this reality by seeking inter

venor status in Pierce County as well as also seeking affirmative relief un-

der that same cause number. Nonetheless, less than a month later he com-

menced an action in Kittitas County Superior Court seeking the same relief. 

In 1990, this Court held that each superior court is a separate court: 

In Washington, cases may be consolidated pur
suant to CR 42(a), which provides in part: 

This rule provides the procedure for consolidation 
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of cases "pending before the court." Only if the 
various counties' superior courts are viewed as a 
single superior court of the State of Washington 
would cases pending in superior courts of differ
ent counties be "pending before *the* court," thus 
authorizing consolidation under CR 42(a). Neither 
the state constitution nor the statutes creating the 
superior courts support such a characterization. 
Both the constitutional provisions and the statutes 
pertaining to superior courts refer to multiple 
courts. See Const. art. 4, §§ 1, 5 ("The judicial 
power of the state shall be vested in ... superior 
courts .... There shall be in *each* of the organ
ized counties of this state a superior court ... "). 
(Italics ours.) See also, e.g., RCW 2.08.030 ("The 
superior courts are courts of record .... "). (Italics 
ours.) Under the language of the constitution and 
the statutes, there is no single superior court. Ac
tions pending before the superior courts of differ
ent counties are not "pending before *the* court." 
[emphasis added] 

Am. Mobile Homes v. Seattle-First, 115 Wn.2d 
307, 312-313, 796 P.2d 1276 (1990). 

Further in the same opinion, it states: 
We agree with the federal courts that have con
sidered this question that to permit a court to di
vest another court of jurisdiction over a case 
pending in the second court has the potential to 
create chaos in our court system. This is because 
to allow one superior court this much control 
would ignore the practical considerations venue 
brings to a lawsuit. It would also ignore the princi
ples of venue determination recognized in our 
statutes, court rules, and case law. Therefore, we 
hold that a superior court may not transfer to itself 
a case which is pending in another county. 

American Mobile Homes. at 316. 

[T]he court which first gains jurisdiction of a 
cause retains the exclusive authority to deal with 
the action until the controversy is resolved. The 
reason for the doctrine is that it tends to prevent 
unseemly, expensive, and dangerous conflicts of 
jurisdiction and of process. 

American Mobile Homes, at 317. 
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Petitioner/ Appellant challenged Kittitas County Superior Court ju

risdiction based on this holding (and Seattle Seahawks) but was rebuffed. 

The Kittitas court accepted the view that it was a mere venue issue and that 

the Pierce County case history was of no import.4 Yet Seattle Seahawks 

clearly holds that this is not a venue issue: 

[T]he underlying purpose of the priority of action 
rule is to determin~ which trial court has jurisdic
tion to control the proceedings. A motion for a 
change of venue must be brought before the 
King County court. [cite omitted]. 

Seattle Seahawks. at 917-918. 

The trial court was clearly wrong and its acts were without authority. 

There is no obvious logic for filing a petition in one county and 

then filing a virtually identical petition in another county. Likely, Respon

dent figured out that it would be impossible to show a substantial change 

in circumstances in order to modify the parenting plan in Pierce County 

since the court file was right there. In Kittitas County, however, he would 

get a new case number and the court file would have no documents from 

prior litigation in the case. Thus, the ability of a court to easily verify 

statements about the history of the case would be difficult and challenges 

by Petitioner/ Appellant could be made to appear to be a venue dispute. 

It is material to the argument presented here to define the charac

teristics of a final judgment: 

[A] final judgment is recognizable as final for pur
poses of appeal if it finally determines the rights of 

4 In 2010, Respondent's attorney without notice obtained an ex parte order of 
dismissal from the Pierce County Superior Court. Apparently, Respondent was 
concerned about Petitioner/Appellant's argument prevailing since the Pierce 
County court clerk's office showed the case as still active. 

9 



. ~ 

the parties in the action and is not subject to de 
novo review at a later hearing in the same cause. 
This is true even if it directs performance of certain 
subsidiary acts in carrying out the judgment, the 
right to the benefit of which is adjudicated in that 
judgment, and even if it is followed by subsequent 
orders with regard to those subsidiary acts. 

[emphasis added] 

Wlasiuk v. Whirlpool Corp., 76 Wn. App. 250, 
255, 884 P.2d 13 (1994). 

Applying this description, a parenting plan entered by default is a 

final judgment. Further action in relation to it would generally begin with 

CR 55. The Parenting Act of 1987, in recognition that final parenting 

plans are subject to the dynamics of change and growthin the family, 

crafted its statutory scheme for modification of parenting plans: 

... [T]he court shall not modify a prior custody 
decree or a parenting plan unless it finds, upon 
the basis of facts that have arisen since the prior 
decree or plan or that were unknown to the court 
at the time of the prior decree or plan, that a 
substantial change has occurred in the circum
stances of the child or the nonmoving party and 
that the modification is in the best interest of the 
child and is necessary to serve the best interests 
of the child. 

[emphasis added) 

RCW 26.09.260 

Because the Pierce County Superior Court entered the parenting 

plan by default, the only method of raising issues of fact from before the 

date of its entry would be to move to vacate the plan. 5 However, Respon

dent would not have standing to bring such a motion since his status as an 

5 Such a motion would fail because there was nothing irregular about the proce
dures used by Petitioner/Appellant to obtain default entry nor did any fraud exist. 
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intervening party did not exist until after the entry of default. Another way 

to state this is to say that he was not a party aggrieved by the default 

judgment; thus he lacks standing to seek relief from its effect. 

But that did not deter Respondent from seeking a court where he 

could allege child abuse as a justification for the two years he claimed to 

be the unauthorized sole caretaker of the children. As can be seen from the 

initial pleading in Kittitas County, Respondent alleged that it was Peti

tioner I Appellant's "violent nature" plus the allegedly two years that the 

children had resided with Respondent which together showed adequate 

cause to modify custody.6 

Under these circumstances, Respondent crossed into forbidden ter-

ritory as established by this Court and the United States Supreme Court: 

The liberty interest at issue in this case -the inter
est of parents in the care, custody, and control of 
their children- is perhaps the oldest of the funda
mental liberty interests recognized by this Court. 
More than 75 years ago, in Meyer v. Nebraska, 262 
U. S. 390, 399, 401 (1923), we held that the "liberty" 
protected by the Due Process Clause includes the 
right of parents to "establish a home and bring up 
children" and "to control the education of their own." 

[T]he Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth 
Amendment protects the fundamental right of par

. ents to make decisions concerning the care, cus
tody, and control of their children. 

Section 26.1 0.160(3), as applied to Granville and her 
family in this case, unconstitutionally infringes on that 

6 Respondent did not allege a substantial change in circumstances since the par
enting plan was entered. 
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fundamental parental right. The Washington nonpar
ental visitation statute is breathtakingly broad .. Ac
cording to the statute's text, "[a]ny person may peti
tion the court for visitation rights at any time," and the 
court may grant such visitation rights whenever 
"visitation may serve the best interest of the child." 
§26.1 0.160(3) (emphases added). That language 
effectively permits any third party seeking visitation to 
subject any decision by a parent concerning visitation 
of the parent's children to state-court review. Once 
the visitation petition has been filed in court and the 
matter is placed before a judge, a parent's decision 
that visitation would not be in the child's best interest 
is accorded no deference. Section 26.1 0.160(3) 
contains no requirement that a court accord the par
ent's decision any presumption of validity or any 
weight whatsoever. Instead, the Washington statute 
places the best-interest determination solely in the 
hands of the judge. Should the judge disagree with 
the parent's estimation of the child's best interests, 
the judge's view necessarily prevails. Thus, in practi
cal effect, in the State of Washington a court can dis
regard and overturn any decision by a fit custodial 
parent concerning visitation whenever a third party 
affected by the decision files a visitation petition, 
based solely on the judge's determination of the 
child's best interests. The Washington Supreme 
Court had the opportunity to give § 26.1 0.160(3) a 
narrower reading, but it declined to do so. 

Troxel v Granville, 530 U.S. 57, 65, 66-67, (2000). 

Petitioner/ Appellant asserts that Respondent's non-parental cus

tody petition seeking to wrest custody of his siblings from their father 

could not have prevailed under Troxel if had it been styled as a visitation 

petition. It is absurd to consider that it can survive as a custody petition 

under the Troxel standards regardless of which court had cognizance. 

But there is another aspect that is present and which has been ac

tively hidden in plain sight by the concerted actions taken in the legal 

system. Respondent enticed and concealed his siblings from their father 
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with the active approval of their mother or vice versa. This is a crime: 

(t) A relative of a child under the age of eighteen or 
of an incompetent person is guilty of custodial in
terference in the first degree if, with the intent to 
deny access to the child or incompetent person by 
a parent, guardian, institution, agency, or other per
son having a lawful right to physical custody of 
such person, the relative takes, entices, retains, 
detains, or conceals the child or incompetent per-
son from a parent, guardian, institution, agency, or 
other person having a lawful right to physical cus
tody of such person and: 

(a) Intends to hold the child or incompetent 
person permanently or for a protracted period; or 

(2) A parent of a child is guilty of custodial interfer
ence in the first degree if the parent takes, entices, 
retains, detains, or conceals the child, with the in
tent to deny access, from the other parent having 
the lawful right to time with the child pursuant to a 
court-ordered parenting plan, and: 

(a) Intends to hold the child permanently or 
for a protracted period; or 

(4) Custodial interference in the first degree is a 
class C felony. 

RCW 9A.40.060 

It is obvious that Respondent's own statements made to support his 

case are an admission of custodial interference. The civil courts do not 

exist to create a judicial alibi for criminal activity. 

Irrespective of which court had jurisdiction, the default judgment was 
res judicata as to any issues which could have been litigated. 

In a 2000 opinion, the trial court accepted an agreed order of de-

pendency. Later, the parents sued for negligent investigation, violation of 
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42 U.S.C. § 1983, negligent infliction of emotional distress, and outrage. 

The trial court dismissed the lawsuit. The appeals court held: 

Collateral estoppel precludes a party from reliti
gating an issue of fact that the party has already 
litigated to final judgment, so long as injustice 
does not result. A key issue of fact in the de
pendency action was whether the [parents] had 
abused or neglected their children prior to De
cember 5, 1994. The dependency court resolved 
that issue by entering a judgment that was final 
and appealable. In that judgment, it ruled that 
the children were dependent within the meaning 
of RCW 13.34.030(4}, which is equivalent to 
saying the children were abused or neglected. 
Assuming without holding that the [parents] 
could attack the trial court's judgment directly 
(i.e., by motion made in the dependency action}, 
they may not attack it collaterally (i.e., by reliti
gation in a separate action such as this). For 
purposes of this case, the Miles are bound to the 
proposition that their children were abused or 
neglected in 1994. [footnotes omitted] 

Miles v. CPS, 102 Wn. App. 142, 153, 6 P.3d 
112 {2000). 

For the purposes of res judicata, a default judgment should have 

the same effect as the Miles agreed order. After proper service, a default is 

a choice to not litigate as is an agreed order. Petitioner/ Appellant sees no 

reason that the Miles holding should not apply to this instant matter. 

Under Miles, the only facts which could have been litigated were 

those facts arising subsequent to 11 February 2005 (date of entry of the 

default parenting plan). Yet none ofthe alleged facts in the Kittitas non

parental custody petition arose subsequent to that date. Thus, the petition 

failed to fulfill the elements ofRCW 26.09.260 and should have been 

dismissed because it was not (nor could it be) an original action. 
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Additionally, there is the question of whether a collateral attack 

upon the existing parenting plan (and the Pierce County superior court's 

finding that it was in the best interests of the children) can be mounted in a 

separate action. The closest case that Petitioner/ Appellant found that ad

dresses this issue holds: 

Lastly, we address whether Aldrich can assert 
DSHS's error by motion to show cause filed in 
his original dissolution action. Res judicata ap
plies to the quasi-judicial decision of an adminis
trative tribunal as well as to the judicial decision 
of a court. [cites omitted] It operates at such time 
as the decision in question becomes final. [cites 
omitted] When it operates. it precludes relitiga
tion by collateral attack, [cites omitted) and gen
erally speaking. a motion filed in a different ac
tion constitutes a collateral attack. [cites omitted] 

In this case, DSHS's administrative order was 
quasi judicial. See RCW 74.20A.055(1) (pro
ceeding brought under statute is "adjudicative"). 
It became final when Aldrich failed to properly 
appeal it within 30 days. RCW 74.20A.055; 
RCW 34.05.542(2). It has been res judicata ever 
since. and Aldrich cannot now collaterally attack 
it by motion filed in a different cause of action. 

[emphasis added] 

Marriage of Aldrich, 72 Wn. App. 132, 138, 
864 P.2d 388 (1993). 

Even if Petitioner/ Appellant's jurisdictional argument fails, the 

manner in which the case was pursued in Kittitas County was defective in 

that it denied due process to Petitioner/ Appellant. 

Irrespective of Petitioner/Appellant's other arguments, it was an abuse 
of discretion to award reasonable attorney (ees to Respondent. 

An award of reasonable attorney fees is authorized by statute: 
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The court from time to time, after considering the fi
nancial resources of all parties, may order a party to 
pay a reasonable amount for the cost to the other 
party of maintaining or defending any proceeding 
under this chapter and for reasonable attorney's 
fees or other professional fees in connection there
with, including sums for legal services rendered and 
costs incurred prior to the commencement of the 
proceeding or enforcement or modification pro
ceedings after entry of judgment. 

RCW 26.10.080 

Appellate opinions on this statute are sparse and not really helpful. 

However, the text is the same as RCW 26.09.140 so opinions interpreting 

that statute should be appropriate for use here. 

The only finding (entered 30 January 2012) that related to Peti-

tioner I Appellant's current ability to pay stated as follows: 

The Court finds that $2000.00 is a reasonable 
amount of attorney's fees to award to Petitioners 
to be paid by Respondent Daniel Barrett, Sr. and 
that he has the ability to pay said amount, and 
additional fees associated with the Remand 
Hearing as provided herein. 

Finding of Fact# 11 

The trial court also made Finding of Fact# 5, which stated: 

The Court reaffirms the Findings of Fact re
garding the gross income and net income of the 
father as originally found by the Court pursuant 
to the Washington State Child Support Schedule 
filed with the Court May 15, 2006 and the Order 
of Child Support entered May 15, 2006 in the 
original cause of action. 

There are no findings relating to Petitioner/ Appellant's ability to 

pay. There is an implied premise that previous fmdings entered in 2006 

provided sufficient current evidentiary support for Finding # 5 but two 
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points operate against accepting that premise at face value. 

First, the fmdings should have been restated as findings in the cur

rent Findings of Fact. Because this was not done, there is no basis to imply 

that they were sufficient or proper to be used by reference. In other words, 

Finding # 5 essentially asserts that we should "trust" that the previous 

fmdings were appropriate and sufficient. Petitioner/Appellant declines to 

trust findings that have already been subjected to a trip to Division Three 

and he finds no reason to trust Respondent for any purpose. 

Second, there is no authority to "accept" Child Support Schedules 

for anything other than child support. Likewise, a child support order is 

not evidence of anything other than its existence and the steps leading up 

to its entry. If a child support schedule declaration was suitable for another 

purpose, the statutes would say so. Most importantly, the worksheets are 

done pursuant to child support statutes which do not have the same re-

quirements as RCW 26.1 0.080. Thus, they cannot be extrapolated straight 

across to another use. 

Finding of Fact# 11 mainly a Conclusion of Law. As such, it fails 

to provide support for the award of attorney fees. 7 Conclusion of Law # 6 

has no findings regarding Petitioner/Appellant's ability to pay the other 

party's attorney fees for the Remand Hearing. Thus, it is an unsupported 

conclusion of law and cannot help support the award of attorney fees. 

7 It should be noted that Conclusion of Law# 5 is virtually a restatement of Find
ing of Fact# 11, as regards to Petitioner/Appellant. Thus it is of no help to sup
port the Order awarding fees. 
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Stare decisis and the late attack on the assumption ofiurisidiction is no 
bar to this Court making a just determination. 

Petitioner/ Appellant anticipates that Respondent will argue both 

that Petitioner/ Appellant has had his opportunity to raise this question and 

that this Court should be bound by the prior decisions of Division Three 

which ruled against Petitioner/ Appellant. 

If those appellate decisions were based on all relevant information 

and were themselves correct, Petitioner/ Appellant would agree. This 

question of the original authority of the Kittitas County Superior Court at 

this late date is addressed as follows: 

... [T]he appropriate test to be followed in con
testing subject matter jurisdiction is set forth in 
Restatement (Second) of Judgments§ 12 (1982): 

When a court has rendered a judgment in a con
tested action, the judgment precludes the parties 
from litigating the question of the court's subject 
matter jurisdiction in subsequent litigation except if: 

(1) The subject matter of the action was so plainly 
beyond the court's jurisdiction that its entertaining 
the action was a manifest abuse of authority; or 

(2) Allowing the judgment to stand would substan
tially infringe the authority of another tribunal or 
agency of government; or 

(3) The judgment was rendered by a court lacking 
capability to make an adequately informed de
termination of a question concerning its own ju
risdiction and as a matter of procedural fairness 
the party seeking to avoid the judgment should 
have opportunity belatedly to attack the court's 
subject matter jurisdiction. 

[emphasis added] 

Marriage of Brown, 98 Wn.2d 46, 50, 653 P.2d 
602 (1982). 
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As argued herein, the Kittitas County Superior Court has substan

tially infringed the authority of another tribunal -- namely, Pierce County 

Superior Court. Thus, this Court's own precedent authorizes the present 

attack by Petitioner/ Appellant. 

Further support for this Court to render a decision on the validity 

of the trial court's assumption of jurisdiction of the subject matter is found 

in the following opinion: 

Under the doctrine of stare decisis. the court is 
not obliged to perpetuate its own errors. This 
doctrine means that the rule laid down in any par
ticular case is applicable to another case involv
ing identical or substantially similar facts, [cite 
omitted]. But the doctrine will not be applied in 
cases in which to do so would perpetuate error 
and in which no property rights would be affected 
by the overruling of the prior decision, [cite omit
ted]. We see no reason why this principle should 
not apply where the allegedly erroneous decision 
is one which was rendered on a prior appeal of 
the same case. And in fact it is the increasingly 
accepted view that the doctrine of "law of the 
case" is a discretionary rule, which should not be 
applied where it would result in manifest injustice. 

[emphasis added] 

Greene v. Rothschild, 68 Wn.2d 5, 8,414 P.2d 
1013 (1966) 

VI. CONCLUSION 

Respondent hid his siblings from their father for years with no 

authority except that he states that his mother abandoned them to his care. 

He made no effort to obtain legal authority to have them in his care. 

When Respondent found out that his father had a court order plac

ing his siblings in his father's care, he went looking for a judge so he 
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could get a different result. First he went to the tribal court even though he 

knew that none of the children (including himself) were Indians. The tribal 

court told him to go back to Pierce County. Instead he went to Kittitas 

County and found a judge and an attorney to give him what he wanted. All 

he had to do was accuse his father of being a violent dangerous person. 

It is up to this court to set this situation right by voiding all of the 

Kittitas County Superior Court actions all the way back to the beginning so 

that this case can't serve as a template for others to violate jurisdiction. 

Forum shopping is recognized as a bad thing in every court system 

in the country. Our statutes and civil rules and precedent all prohibit it. 

Yet some members of the legal system would rather not admit they made a 

mistake, choosing to perpetuate the error and even compound it. 

Petitioner/ Appellant request that this Court retain the appeal and 

declare the action void from the start.