Response in Opposition to Motion on the Merits 

General opening statement. 

This appeal is not suitable for summary affirmation pursuant to 

RAP 18.14 because the primary issue is one of superior court jurisdiction. 

If the rules permitted it, Petitioner/ Appellant would have filed his Opening 

Brief and also a Motion on the Merits to Reverse. 

Furthermore, Respondent should not be permitted to file a Re

sponse Brief because that would be inconsistent with his assertion that the 

case is suitable for RAP 18.14 determination. If the case can be affirmed 

without a brief, then submitting a brief later would be futile. 

This Court should either refer the matter to the panel or else re

verse based on the content of Petitioner/Appellant's Opening Brief. 

Preliminary issues. 

RAP 4.2(e) governs the consideration of this action in this Court. It 

appears from the wording of the rule that the Supreme Court must first ac

cept the case for review before it reaches the merits. At this point in time, 

there is nothing in the record that indicates acceptance by this Court. Thus, 

the RAP 18.14 motion on the merits to affirm would seem to be premature 

at the least. Of course if this Court accepts review, that means that the ap

peal has merit and the RAP 18.14 motion must be denied in order to be 

consistent. In any event, the contents of Respondent's motion show a pur

pose of seeking to keep this Court from reaching the merits of the appeal. 
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Why the appeal has merit. 

Petitioner/ Appellant has argued two critical points in his Opening 

Brief: (a) that Respondent never had legal standing to petition Kittitas 

County Superior Court for relief; and (b) that the Kittitas County Superior 

Court's assumption of jurisdiction over this subject matter was in direct 

defiance of existing and valid precedent of this Court. 

There is also another reason: the trial court did not make any juris

dictional findings to support its conclusion that it had jurisdiction. 

Respondent has completely avoided rebutting (or even meeting) 

the arguments in the Opening Brief. There is only one reason to do this -

he cannot overcome those arguments. By that reasoning, a Motion on the 

Merits to Affirm is an obvious mechanism to avoid that confrontation. 

Petitioner/Appellant has no disagreement with Respondent's reci

tation of the procedural history of this dispute in Kittitas County. As is his 

custonl, he omits the facts which are inconsistent with his message that 

Petitioner/Appellant is a stubborn re-litigator. Since those facts relating to 

the prior history of the case in Pierce County are found in the Opening 

Brief, they can be incorporated here. Respondent sought to intervene in 

Pierce County and prevailed. He filed a Non-Parental Petition for Custody. 

He invoked the jurisdiction of Pierce County Superior Court upon himself 

This cannot be ignored by the Kittitas County Superior Court yet it was. 

Respondent presents this case to this Court as one which meets the 

criteria of RAP 18 .14( e)( 1 ), which states: 
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Motion to Affirm. A motion on the merits to affirm 
will be granted in whole or in.part if the appeal or 
any part thereof is determined to be clearly with
out merit. In making these determinations, the 
judge or commissioner will consider all relevant 
factors including whether the issues on review 
(a) are clearly supported by settled law, (b) are 
factual and supported by the evidence, or (c) are 
matters of judicial discretion and the decision 
was clearly within the discretion of the trial court 
or administrative agency. 

The three specified factors are alternative. It is unclear whether the 

decision will be affinned if only one of the criteria is met but that would 

seem to be within the authority of the rule. 

In his motion, Respondent implicitly asks this Court to affirm be

cause Petitioner/Appellant is "requesting a third bite at the apple" which is 

presumably not allowed. He proceeds to describe the results of prior ap

peals and again implies that it is not permitted to revisit (or visit for the 

first time) the issue of standing and jurisdiction. 

Yet Respondent provides zero authority to this Court to support 

his implications, inferences, premises, assumptions, and presumptions. 

In short, he expects this Court to simply give him what he wants. 

Factor(a) 

This factor cannot be applied here because Respondent has pro

vided no "settled law" by which this Court could detennine that the trial 

court was correct. It is not the responsibility of this Court to figure out 

what the law is that Respondent could have cited. The closest he comes is 

his oblique use of the phrase "Law of the Case Doctrine" on page 3. 
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As for the jurisdictional argument in Petitioner/ Appellant's open

ing brief, Respondent has provided no citations to authority to the con

trary. Therefore, Factor (a) is not applicable to this motion. 

Factor(b) 

As mentioned earlier in this response, the trial court made no juris

dk1ional findings. Therefore, this Court must either make the findings it

self or determine that the rulings on jurisdiction lack support. 

As cited in the Opening Brief, settled law clearly holds that Pierce 

County Superior Court had exclusive jurisdiction over the subject matter 

of this litigation. Unless this Court is prepared to overrule its own prece

dent articulated in Seattle Scahawks v King County, the trial court com

mitted clear error. Since the error allowed the trial court to affect a funda-

mental right of Petitioner/ Appellant as articulated in Troxel v Granville 

530 U. S. 57 (2000), the presumption must be that the issue is controlled 

by those two cases and is thus unsuitable for affumance using Factor (b). 

Factor (c) 

Having eliminated the first two factors, (c) is all that remains. 1 

Discretion is usually defined in terrns of what constitutes an abuse of dis

cretion, leaving the remaining determinations to be within discretion. 

There are three conditions which can show an abuse of discretion: 

1 The rule is not limited to three factors by its text but since Respondent did not 
articulate any other factors along with argument for their acceptance, this motion 
is limited to the three enumerated factors. 
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Judicial discretion is a composite of many things, 
among which are conclusions drawn from objec
tive criteria; it means a sound judgment exercised 
with regard to what is right under the circum
stances and without doing so arbitrarily or capri
ciously. [cite omitted]. Where the decision or order 
of the trial court is a matter of discretion, it will not 
be disturbed on review except on a clear showing 
of abuse of discretion, that is, discretion manifestly 
unreasonable, or exercised on untenable grounds, 
or for untenable reasons. [cites omitted]. 

Whether this discretion is based on untenable 
grounds, or is manifestly unreasonable, or is ar
bitrarily exercised, depends upon the comparative 
and compelling public or private interests of those 
affected by the order or decision and the com
parative weight of the reasons for and against the 
decision one way or the other. 

State ex rei. Carroll v. Junker, 79 Wn.2d 12, 26, 
482 P.2d 775 (1971). 

Petitioner/ Appellant agrees that this Court should begin from the 

position that the trial court decision is correct and that it is his burden to 

show error. Petitioner/Appellant has done so in his opening brief andRe

spondent's motion on the merits contains nothing to even resist the show-

ing of error, let alone overcome it. This Court has before it a brief which 

clearly articulates the trial court errors, and the authorities which show that 

those claims of error are well-taken. Therefore, absent something to argue 

against in the Motion on the Merits, Petitioner/ Appe11ant is forced to stand 

only on his opening brief. This Court should carefully consider the claims 

of errors (with supporting authorities) made by Petitioner/Appellant and 

shift the burden of proof & persuasion to Respondent to show if any 

authorities exist that support the trial court. 
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In short, he needs to defend the trial court decision. This motion on 

the merits to affirm is essentially a statement that the decision below can 

stand on its own and needs no help. 

Conclusion. 

Since Respondent has declined to defend the trial court decision, 

nor cite to any authority which supports it, this Court should refer this ap

peal to the panel for decision.